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I EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The City of Hampton, Henry County, Georgia (City), a certified local government (CLG), was awarded a 2017
Historic Preservation Fund (HPF) grant by the Georgia Department of Natural Resources (DNR), Historic
Preservation Division (HPD) for a Phase Two/Final Phase Community-Wide Historic Resources Survey. The
Phase Two survey completes the documentation of historic resources within the city limits and supplements
the Phase One Historic Resources Survey completed in August 2017.

The Phase Two/Final Phase Historic Resources Survey documented 262 resources constructed through 1978
located within the City’s physical limits and outside the Phase One survey area. This Historic Resources
Survey Report describes and analyzes that documentation. A table of resources surveyed is located in
Appendix A. The surveyed resources are within a number of noncontiguous areas identified on the Phase
Two Historic Resources Survey Map in Appendix B.

This survey report includes recommendations regarding potential National Register of Historic Places (NRHP)
eligibility of surveyed resources. However, these recommendations are made with the following disclaimer:

It should be noted that this historic resource survey report does not in any way change the City
of Hampton’s existing individual property or historic district listings in the National Register
of Historic Places. Any amendments to existing listings and/or the nomination of additional
properties or districts, including those recommended herein, must be made through the
National Register of Historic Places process according to 36 CFR 60, as amended.

Recommendations for historic districts and individual properties that may be potentially eligible for local

designation and/or NRHP listing are discussed in Vil. Recommendations for Future Preservation Activities.
Any potential historic districts or individual properties will need further research and documentation for

nomination to the NRHP.
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V. DEVELOPMENTAL HISTORY

The early developmental history of the City of Hampton, and its core downtown and residential areas,

is outlined in the Phase One Historic Resources Survey Report finalized in August 2017. This Phase Two
developmental history gives a brief summary of the City’s early development, then focuses on development
in the Phase Two survey area surrounding the City’s core that largely dates from the decades of the mid-
twentieth century.

As the Phase One developmental history points out, the community that became Hampton was originally
known as Bear Creek Station. Bear Creek was incorporated in 1872 and became the Town of Hampton in
1873. The Central of Georgia Railroad had been constructed through the area that would become Hampton
in 1851, and a wooden railroad depot had been built. Buying, selling, and transporting cotton in support
of the area’s cotton mill industries was the backbone of the area’s economy during the late nineteenth
and early twentieth centuries and drove Hampton’s development.® With the booming cotton business,
the wooden depot became too small for the amount of shipping activity, and in 1881 the existing brick
depot was completed. Hampton was the only rail connection in Henry County at the time, and the town
experienced a building boom around 1880 that included the depot, cotton warehouses, a hotel, and
numerous residences. The boom slowed, however, with the 1882 construction of a rail line and depot in
nearby McDonough.*

The community of Hampton developed along the railroad line. East and West Main streets were laid out
parallel to and on either side of the rail line. The downtown commercial area developed on the east side of
the railroad adjacent to the depot. Residential neighborhoods developed around the downtown commercial
area on both the east and west sides of the rail line. Two late-nineteenth-century houses in the Phase Two
survey area were some of the earliest houses in the community. The Turner-Fields House at 76 East Main
Street, just north of downtown, is a late-nineteenth-century house documented in tax records as constructed
in 1870. The Curry-Fisk-Landis House, an outlying rural property on the City’s south side at 58 West King
Road, is documented in tax records as 1890; however, the property owner estimates the house was there by
1868.

Sanborn Fire Insurance maps document Hampton's development from 1890 to 1923 and illustrate the
significance of cotton to the city’s economy by the number of cotton-related businesses within the
community. The 1890 Sanborn map documents the city’s population at 600. A number of cotton warehouses
were located in and around downtown, including the large A. J. Henderson cotton and guano warehouse

on East Main Street at the rail line, and the E. G. Harris cotton gin on Mill (now Elm) Street. The Henderson
Manufacturing Company, making ladies underwear, had been established by A. J. Henderson on James Street
by 1900, and an additional cotton gin was located south of the depot. Five years later, Hampton Cotton Mills
had been constructed one-half mile west of West Main Street.’

By 1911, the city’s population had grown to 1100, and more and larger residences had been constructed
on both sides of downtown, particularly along Oak Street west of the rail line. Henderson Manufacturing
Company continued to expand its business at James and East Main streets. A number of active cotton gins
and warehouses remained in and around downtown. Other businesses, including a buggy and a fertilizer
company, were also contributing to the local economy. The Hampton Electric and Water Company had
been constructed west of the depot, providing electricity and water to the community’s businesses and
residences.®

The city’s two cotton mills, Henderson Manufacturing Company and Hampton Cotton Mills, formed the basis
of the town’s economy, particularly during the height of their operation in the 1920s and 1930s.” Henderson

3. Kisa Hooks, Historic Resources Survey: Phase 1: Community-Wide Historic Survey for Hampton, Georgia, August 2017; Emily Griffin,
“Hampton and Her History,” (undated).

4. “Hampton Depot,” National Register of Historic Places Nomination, 1979.

5. Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps, Map & Government Information Library, University of Georgia.

6. Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps (1890-1911), Digital Library of Georgia, accessed March 9, 2018.

7. "Henderson Manufacturing Company,” Nationa!l Register of Historic Places Nomination, 2004.
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Manufacturing was purchased by Hampton Cotton Mills in 1919 and by 1923 had become Hampton Cotton
Mills #2.2 The 1923 Sanborn maps document the continued prevalence of these cotton-related industries.
Map #4 of the 1923 maps shows the area west of the rail line in the vicinity of Hampton Cotton Mills #1. (See
Figure 2: 1923 Sanborn Map) Woodlawn Avenue, Cunningham Street, and College (now Central), included in
the Phase Two survey area, are lined with what appears to be mill housing associated with the nearby mill.
These houses were probably constructed around 1905 when Hampton Cotton Mills was established.®

Development in the Phase Two survey area, outside the City’s historic core, was minimal during the 1920s
and 1930s. South of Woodlawn Avenue, the road that would become Woolsey Road was largely undeveloped
and contained only a few houses at its east end near West Main Street. Residential development on the
north side of downtown extended farther north on both East and West Main streets with a few houses
added on each side of the rail line. In 1923, the historically African-American neighborhood on Elm Street
included a “Colored Church” (no longer extant) in the block east of downtown (in the Phase One survey
area) and a few houses scattered along the street.’® By 1939, the neighborhood’s residential development
was concentrated on the north side of the street along a previous alignment that explains the setback of the
houses in this area today.!* The current straighter alighment was also in place by that time. Fewer houses
were built along the street’s south side, but among these was the Queenie Mae Jinks House, the home of a
former African-American school teacher, at 44 Elm Street.*?

The boli weevil’s destruction of cotton crops in Georgia during the 1910s and 1920s, and the Great
Depression of the 1930s, dramatically reduced cotton production and adversely affected cotton
manufacturing industries, including those in Hampton. The Henderson Manufacturing Company/Hampton
Cotton Mills #2 in downtown Hampton closed in 1936. The Henderson family then established the
Henderson Foundry and Machine Works in the Hampton Cotton Mills #1 complex west of downtown.*?

In 1940, Southern States Equipment Corporation, an electrical engineering and infrastructure company,
purchased the Foundry building from the Henderson family as a place to locate their business in Hampton.
The Henderson’s business continued to operate alongside Southern States until 1946 when Southern States
acquired the entire property. Southern States became a major employer in the city and remains in business
today at the same location, producing high voltage switching equipment.**

The presence of Southern States as a major employer in the City of Hampton brought about increased
residential development in several locations within the Phase Two survey area during the post-World War Il
years of the late 1940s and 1950s. Houses constructed on Woodlawn Avenue during this time were largely
associated with Southern States. According to several Woodlawn Avenue property owners, many of the
houses on the street were built for the company’s management and high-level employees. Either 19 or 23
Woodlawn was home to a Southern States vice president. 26 Woodlawn Avenue was built by Joe and Billie
Phillips in the late 1940s; Joe Phillips was an engineer for Southern States.** According to the property owner,
36 Woodlawn Avenue was built by Mr. and Mrs. T. A. Burdeshaw, also associated with the company. Based
on the original architectural plans, dated July 3, 1958, in possession of the property owner, the house was
designed by architect Dick B. Spangler, whose office was located at 212 Masonic Building in Griffin, Georgia.'®

Part of Woodlawn Avenue and Woolsey Road, just south of the Southern States plant, is shown on a
1956 plat for the subdivision of land owned by the company. (See Figure 3: 1956 Plat of Southern States

8. Ibid.

9. Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps, UGA. The 1923 Sanborn map #4 is the first that shows the Woodlawn Avenue, Cunningham Street,
and Woolsey Road area that is part of the Phase Two survey area.

10. Ibid.

11. 1939 Aerial Photograph, Map & Government Information Library, University of Georgia.

12. Information about the Queenie Mae Jinks House and its former resident was obtained in an interview with the property owner of
42 Elm Street.

13. “Henderson Manufacturing Company,” NR homination.

14. “Henderson Manufacturing Company,” NR nomination; Southern States, A Century of Innovation and Reliability: The Southern
States Story.

15. Information obtained from interviews with several Woodlawn Avenue property owners.

16. Information obtained from property owner Peter Bonner, 36 Woodlawn Avenue.
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Figure 6: 1960 Plat of Section [ of Triangular Homes Subdivision, showing a portion of Woolsey Road, Hillside Drive, and Fortson Drive

property was owned by the Southern States corporation, but it is not known if the company was involved

in building the subdivision. Woodlawn Avenue and Brook Avenue are shown as cross streets. The intention
may have been to connect to the existing Woodlawn Avenue, although that did not take place. The plat laid
out requirements for building in the subdivision, including a minimum of 1,300 square feet of enclosed living
space and a minimum cost of $17,300 for each house. According to tax records, the houses on Ridge Drive
were constructed from 1963 to 1973, with most dating from the 1960s. The ranch and split-level houses here
are generally larger and more architecturally detailed than 1960s houses in other subdivisions; many of them
have Colonial Revival style details.

The automobile service station at 44 Woolsey Road is shown on the Woodland Subdivision plat at the
southwest corner of Ridge Drive; the service station was constructed in 1960. An automobile repair garage at
88 Woolsey Road was constructed next to the service station in 1978. These auto-related businesses served
the growing residential areas along Woolsey Road and adjoining streets.

The south side of the City remained largely rural during the 1960s and 1970s, with only a few houses
constructed along East Main Street South, East and West King Roads, and South Hampton Road. Lake
Hampton, on the east side of East Main Street South, had been constructed by 1964. The house at 75 East
Main Street South, at the edge of Lake Hampton, was constructed in 1960 and is visible in the 1962 aerial
photograph.?’

Increased residential development continued in Hampton in the 1970s, spurred at least in part by the 1969
completion of Interstate 75 a few miles away through Henry County that improved transportation access to
and from the City. The two largest additions to the City’s residential development during the early 1970s, and
within the Phase Two survey area, were the Hampton West Subdivision off West Main Street on the north
side of the city, and the first half of a mobile home community on Oak Street. The Hampton West Subdivision

27.1962 Aerial Photograph, USGS Earth Explorer, https://earthexplorer.usgs.gov; 1964 Aerial Photograph, UGA.
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plat dates to 1972.% (See Figure 8: 1972 Plat of Hampton West Subdivision) The first wave of housing
construction in Hampton West was built during 1973 and 1974 along Caldwell and Belmont drives, Porter
Court, and Porter Circle; the remainder of the subdivision was not constructed until the 1980s. By 1974, the
mobile home community had expanded to twice its original size.? (See Figure 9: 1974 Aerial Photograph of
Hampton)

A new facility for the Berea Christian Church congregation, formerly located on McDonough Street, was
constructed by 1971 on Woolsey Road between Hillside and Westside drives. The city’s Fortson Public Library
on Old Griffin Road opened in 1974. Additional houses were constructed on Ridge Drive and Westside Drive
during the 1970s, filling out these subdivisions. Scattered houses were also added on ElIm and Babb streets,
and along East Main Street South, Hampton-Locust Grove Road, and South Hampton Road. The houses on
the south side of Daniel Street, part of the Carver Heights Subdivision, were constructed by 1974. Calvary
Baptist Church at 109 Oak Street was built in 1977.%°

As Hampton continued to grow during the 1980s and 1990s, residential developments expanded around
already established neighborhoods, such as those on Lindsey Lane and Nicki Court on the north side of
Woolsey Road. New developments, such as Hampton Oaks and Oak Grove Estates on the north side of

Oak Street, and Olde Hampton and Dogwood Lakes on the north side of McDonough Street, were also
constructed. The Grove Park Subdivision developed along Hampton-Locust Grove Road. Scattered houses
continued to be constructed throughout the city, including on East Main Street South, King Road, and South
Hampton Road.?!

The construction of new residential neighborhoods has continued into the 2000s on both the north and
south sides of the City’s core, filling in many of the previously rural areas within the city limits. A new four-
lane Georgia Highway 20 was completed along the south side of Hampton in 2005.%? This divided highway cut
across largely undeveloped land but cut off the more scattered residences along East Main Street South, King
Road, and South Hampton Road from the remainder of the city. This corridor remains largely undeveloped
within the city limits today.

28. Henry County Real Estate Records.

29. 1971 Aerial Photograph, UGA; 1974 Aerial Photograph, USGS.

30. 1971 and 1978 Aerial Photographs, UGA; 1974 Aerial Photograph, USGS.
31. Henry County tax records.

32. LCI Study, 2011; 2005 Aerial Photograph, USGS.
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VI. SURVEY RESULTS AND ARCHITECTURAL ANALYSIS
Survey Area Description

The Phase Two survey area consists of the remainder of the city limits outside of the Phase One survey

area, which focused on the historic central business district and surrounding contiguous residential areas.
Within this Phase Two area, scattered neighborhoods and properties that were 40 years old and older were
surveyed. The Phase Two surveyed resources are shown on the Historic Resources Survey Map in Appendix B.

On the west side of the Central of Georgia Railroad and West Main Street, Phase Two surveyed resources
included the residential properties along Woodlawn Avenue, Cunningham Street, and Woolsey Road;
Hillside, Fortson, and Westside drives; and Ridge Drive. Also surveyed on Woolsey Road were a church, two
road-related commercial structures, and the FAA Air Route Traffic Control Center. The 1974 former Fortson
Library on Old Griffin Road is also included in the survey. Several residential properties along West Main
Street and north of Central Avenue were surveyed, as well as the portion of the Hampton West Subdivision
off West Main that was constructed in the 1970s. A 1977 church and 1971 mobile home community on Oak
Street are also included. The mobile homes within the community were not individually surveyed due to a
lack of definitive typology information about mobile homes.

On the east side of the Central of Georgia Railroad, a number of residential properties were surveyed along
East Main Street north of EIm Street and to the northern edge of the city limits. The entire Emory Street
neighborhood was surveyed. Along Elm Street, residential properties not included in the Phase One survey
were surveyed, beginning at Babb and Williams streets and extending to the northeast along Elm.

Scattered residential properties along McDonough Street, east of the Phase One survey area, were surveyed.
The Maddox-Sims and Ben H. Maddox residential subdivisions along North Avenue and Fields and Shelby
streets were included. Three residential properties on Hampton-Locust Grove Road and one house on South
Hampton Road were also surveyed.

The houses on the south side of Daniel Street, between East and West King roads and in the Carver Heights
Subdivision, were included in the survey. The north side of Daniel Street was included in the previous Phase
One survey. On the south side of Georgia Highway 20, scattered residential properties on East Main Street
South and on East and West King roads were surveyed.

Resource Types and Dates of Construction

A total of 262 resources were surveyed for Phase Two. These resources are 40 years old and older and were
constructed through 1978. 255 of the surveyed resources are individual residential properties (three are
currently vacant). Of the remaining seven resources, one is a mobile home community, two are churches,
two are commercial structures related to automobile service, one is the former city library, and one is the
FAA Air Route Traffic Control Center. (See Figure 10)

33. The FAA Air Route Traffic Control Center is a high-security facility that was not accessible; photos were permitted only from the
road right-of-way.
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Figure 11: Historic Resources |dentified by Decade of Construction

Decade of Construction
1860-1899 2
1900-1909

1910-1919 19
1920-1929 10
1930-1939 5
1940-1949 25
1950-1959 43
1960-1969 84
1970-1978 70
Total 262

Architectural Analysis
Overall Description

A number of residential architectural styles and building types are represented in the Phase Two survey area.
The largest number of surveyed residential resources date to the 1950s, 1960s, and 1970s, and the Plain-
style Ranch/Split-level is the most represented style. This is followed by the Colonial Revival style which is
found on houses constructed throughout the twentieth century. Other styles have only a few representative
examples. A large number of the houses surveyed have no academic style. As with style, a number of house
types are represented in the Phase Two survey, but the mid-twentieth-century Ranch is by far the most
numerous.

The two commercial resources surveyed are utilitarian automobile service-related structures. The FAA Air
Route Traffic Control Center’s complex of buildings and the former Fortson Library both have mid-century
Modern influences. Two churches surveyed are both examples of front-gabled church buildings in the
Contemporary style. The 1970s and later mobile homes in the mobile home community have not yet been
defined in terms of architectural style and building typology, and, therefore, are not addressed individually in
this survey.

Integrity of Resources

The large majority of residential resources surveyed retain the integrity of their architectural form even
though new materials may have been introduced. While there are a number of properties that remain
intact without alterations, most resources have had some type of material alteration. The most common
alterations are the application of vinyl or other artificial siding and the replacement of windows. Many
originally open carports have been enclosed for interior living space or with the addition of garage doors. A
number of houses have had additions.

Overall, the majority of residential areas surveyed retain their integrity, so that although individual
properties may have been altered, the original appearance of the neighborhoods is largely unchanged.

The non-residential properties surveyed have had fewer alterations and remain largely intact as constructed,
retaining their architectural integrity. The two churches have had additions to the side and rear but their
original architectural forms are evident.
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Folk Victorian

Folk Victorian style houses are simple house types with Victorian-era decorative details added to the porch,
in the gables, and around window and door openings. Details include turned or jigsawn woodwork such as
brackets, spindlework, and porch posts.

Figure 14: 43 West Main Street (GNAHRGIS #259523); exa
columns
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Figure 18: 3 Shelby Street (GNAHRGIS #260315); 1971 example of Colonial Revival style with two-story portico
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Plain-style Ranch/Split-level

Plain-style Ranch and Split-level houses are plain, unadorned houses that rely on architectural form, roofline,
window and door openings, and wall treatments for effect rather than stylistic ornamentation. Plain-style
Ranches and Split-levels are the most prevalent architectural style within the Phase Two survey area;
numerous examples were constructed from the 1950s through the 1970s.

; - 3 o 4 = TR RN
Figure 22: 18 North Avenue (GNAHRGIS #260290); 1960 example of Plain-style Ranch
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Contemporary

The Contemporary style has an abstract and stripped down appearance that emphasizes a building’s form and
structure with geometric planes and surfaces and contrasting solids and voids. Characteristic details include exposed
structural elements, wide overhanging eaves, window walls, and fixed irregular shaped windows in gable ends. Only
a few examples of the Contemporary style are found in the Phase Two survey area.

L

Figure 26: 77 East Main Street South (GNAHRGIS #260333); 1972 example of Contemporary style
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Spanish Colonial Revival

The Spanish Colonial Revival style was one of many that revived America’s colonial architectural heritage; in
this case, the Spanish influence in the American southwest, Florida, and California. Typical details included
clay tile roofs, smooth stucco walls, arched openings, and arcaded open porches. A number of houses in the

1970s Hampton West Subdivision have arcaded porches and arched window and door openings that hint at
Spanish Colonial Revival influence.

Figure 29: 156 Caldwell Drive (GNAHRGIS #259535); 1973 example with arcaded porch and arched openings of the Spanish Colonial
Revival style
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Georgian Cottage

The Georgian Cottage plan consists of a central hallway with two rooms on either side and is approximately
square. The roof is usually hipped but may also be gabled.

Figure 34: 69 McDonough Street (GNAHRG!S #259770); example of Georgian Cottage

New South Cottage

The New South Cottage has a central square mass, usually with a hipped roof, and gabled projections.
The plan emphasizes symmetry and has a central hallway flanked by pairs of rooms, one of which projects
forward. Several New South Cottages on Woodlawn Avenue may have been associated with the nearby
Hampton Cotton Mills #1 (later Southern States Equipment Corporation).

Figure 35: 8 Woodlawn Avenue (GNAHRGIS #259318); example of New South Cottage
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Figure 38: 12 Emory Street (GNAHRGIS #259658); variation of Side-Gabled Cottage with recessed corner porch

Double Pen

Double Pens consist of two rooms that are typically square. The house may have two front doors, one into
each room, or may have one door that is off-center.

Figure 39: 56 East Main Street North (GNAHRGIS #259610); example of Double Pen with off-center front door
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Extended Hall-Parlor

The Extended Hall-Parlor has a long rectangular shape with the front elevation in the narrow e
consists of two unequal rooms across and three or more rooms deep. The roof may be gabled

Figure 42: 50 East Main Street North (GNAHRGIS #259603); example of Extended Hall-Parlor

Figure 43: 3 Emory Street (GNAHRGIS #259640); variation of Extended Hall-Parlor with recessed front corner porch

nd. The plan
or hipped.
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Figure 46: 28 Elm Street (GNAHRGIS #259768); 1956 example of American Small House

Extended American Small House

The Extended American Small House is a larger version of the American Small House. Its plan is still compact
although more rectangular than square, one-story, and simply and tightly massed. The plan has been
extended to provide more living space.

-. g

Figure 47: 31 Woodlawn Avenue (GNAHRGIS #259386}; 1949 example of Extended American Small House
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Figure 50: 154 Caldwell Drive (GNAHRGIS #259543); 1972 example of Linear Ranch, without carport or garage

Figure 51: 6A Daniel Street (GNAHRGIS #260326); 1974 example of Linear Ranch
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Figure 54: 13 North Avenue (GNAHRGIS #260285); 1960 example of Courtyard Ranch

) it 0, o o < 3 3 e i
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Figure 55: 36 Woodlawn Avenue (GNAHRGIS #259360); 1960 example of Architect-Designed Linear Ranch, front entrance area has
been altered from the original design
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Figure 58: 206 Belmont Drive (GNAHRGIS #259594); 1973 example of Split-level with sloped roof line extended over the entrance
door

Split-foyer

The Split-foyer house is two stories with the front entrance foyer staggered between the two floor levels.
Three examples of Split-foyer houses are found in the 1970s Hampton West Subdivision.

Figure 59: 160 Caldwell Drive {(GNAHRGIS #259532); 1973 example of Split-foyer
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Commercial/Governmental Building Types
Auto-Related

Two auto-related commercial buildings are represented in the Phase Two survey area — a service station and
an auto repair garage.

Figure 61: 44 Woolsey Road (GNAHRGIS #259499); 1960 example of auto service station

Figure 62: 88 Woolsey Road (GNAHRGIS #259500); 1978 example of auto repair garage
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VIL.

RECOMMENDATIONS FOR FUTURE PRESERVATION ACTIVITIES

The Phase Two survey identified a number of historic properties and neighborhoods, most of which date

to the mid-twentieth century, that should be further researched and recognized as part of the historic
development of the City of Hampton. In addition, properties and portions of neighborhoods were identified
that are currently 40 to 49 years old that will become historic within the next 10 years.

The following recommendations are made for documenting and recognizing these properties based on
the results of the Phase Two survey. These recommendations are not determinations of eligibility for local
designation or National Register listing.

Potential Locally Designated and/or National Register Eligible Historic Districts (50 Years Old & Older)

Woodlawn Avenue, Cunningham Street — Early 1900s mill housing associated with Hampton
Cotton Mills; 1940s to 1960 residential development associated with Southern States Equipment
Corporation personnel; several excellent examples of 1950s Ranches.

Woolsey Road —1950s to 1960s residential development; good collection of Ranch and Split-level
house types.

Ridge Drive — 1960s to early 1970s residential subdivision; excellent collection of substantial Ranch
and Split-level house types, many with Colonial Revival-style detailing; most properties are currently
50 years old or older.

Elm Street, Babb Street, Williams Street — Early to mid-20"-century African-American residential
development, including the Queenie Mae Jinks House at 44 Elm Street (currently abandoned);
further research and interviews with local residents should document the neighborhood’s history.

North Avenue, Fields Street, Shelby Street — 1950s and 1960s Maddox-Sims and Ben H. Maddox
residential subdivisions; good collection of Ranch house types.

Potential Locally Designated and/or National Register Eligible Individual Properties (50 Years Old & Older)

Turner-Fields/Malone Fields House, 76 East Main Street North — ¢.1870 Folk Victorian-style house
associated with the Turner and Fields families; one of the oldest houses dating from the City’s early
history; further research should be done to determine date of construction, ownership, and history.

Queenie Mae Jinks House, 44 Elm Street (currently abandoned, not in Henry County tax records) —
¢.1920 house that was home to a local African-American school teacher.

Curry-Fisk-Landis House, 58 West King Road — ¢.1860s to ¢.1890 house, brick construction, existing
portico dates to mid-20"-century “restoration”; probably owned by William M. Curry who is listed as
a “plantation owner” around Hampton in Henry County history book.

Neighborhoods/Developments that Deserve Further and/or Future Consideration

Hillside Drive, Fortson Drive, Westside Drive — 1960s and early 1970s Triangular Homes and
Woodlawn residential subdivisions; the unsurveyed portion of the neighborhood developed after
1978 and should be documented in future survey and research efforts.

Caldwell Drive, Porter Court, Porter Circle, Belmont Drive —1970s to 1980s Hampton West
residential subdivision; the unsurveyed portion of the neighborhood developed after 1978 and
should be documented in future survey and research efforts; good collection of smaller Ranch, Split-
level, and Split-foyer house types.

Emory Street — Collection of early to mid-1900s mill housing probably associated with Hampton
Cotton Mills and Southern States Equipment Corporation and moved to this location in the 1950s;
further research should document dates of construction and verify association with the cotton mill.
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